

BYLAWS  
OF  
CLINTON YACHT HAVEN DOCKOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1	Identity .....	1
SECTION 2	Applicability of Bylaws .....	1
SECTION 3	Executive Board .....	1
Subsection (a)	Number and Qualification .....	1
Subsection (b)	Powers and Duties .....	2
Subsection (c)	Election and Term of Office .....	4
Subsection (d)	Removal of Members of the Executive Board .....	6
Subsection (e)	Vacancies .....	6
Subsection (f)	Compensation .....	6
Subsection (g)	Meetings of the Executive Board .....	6
Subsection (h)	Quorum of the Executive Board .....	7
Subsection (i)	Election of Officers .....	7
Subsection (j)	Liability of the Executive Board .....	8
Subsection (k)	Resale Certificates and Statements of Unpaid Assessments .....	8
SECTION 4	Meetings of the Unit Owners .....	9
Subsection (a)	Annual Meeting .....	9
Subsection (b)	Place of Meeting .....	9
Subsection (c)	Special Meetings .....	9
Subsection (d)	Notice of Meetings .....	9
Subsection (e)	Quorum .....	9
Subsection (f)	Conduct of Meetings .....	10
Subsection (g)	Majority of Votes .....	10
Subsection (h)	Method of Voting .....	10
SECTION 5	Records .....	11
SECTION 6	Insurance .....	12
SECTION 7	Assessment of Common Expenses .....	13
SECTION 8	Collection of Common Expenses .....	14

SECTION 9	Mortgages . . . . .	16
Subsection (a)	Notice to the Association . . . . .	16
Subsection (b)	Notice of Unpaid Common Expenses . . . . .	16
Subsection (c)	Notice of Default . . . . .	16
Subsection (d)	Examination of Books . . . . .	16
Subsection (e)	Collection and Disbursement of Mortgage Charges . . . . .	17
Subsection (f)	Limitations of Mortgage . . . . .	17
Subsection (g)	Financing Purchase of Units by Association . . . . .	17
SECTION 10	Notice of Lien or Suit . . . . .	17
SECTION 11	Miscellaneous . . . . .	18
Subsection (a)	Notices . . . . .	18
Subsection (b)	Invalidity . . . . .	18
Subsection (c)	Captions . . . . .	18
Subsection (d)	Waiver . . . . .	18
SECTION 12	Modification or Amendment of Bylaws . . . . .	18

BYLAWS

OF

CLINTON YACHT HAVEN DOCKOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC.

SECTION 1.

IDENTITY

These are the Bylaws of Clinton Yacht Haven Dockominium Association, Inc., herein called the "Association", a corporation not organized for profit and existing under the laws of the State of Connecticut. The property to which the Declaration appended hereto and these Bylaws apply is located in the Town of Clinton, Connecticut and is more particularly described in the Declaration of Condominium of which these Bylaws form a part. Said Declaration is to be recorded in the office of the Town Clerk of the Town of Clinton.

SECTION 2.

APPLICABILITY OF BYLAWS

The provisions of these Bylaws are applicable to the Property of the Dockominium and to the use and occupancy thereof. The term Property as used herein shall include the land and all other improvements thereon, including the Units and Common Elements owned in fee simple absolute and all easements, rights and appurtenances belonging thereto, as well as all other property, real, personal or mixed, intended for use in connection therewith.

SECTION 3.

EXECUTIVE BOARD

(a) Number and Qualification. The affairs of the Association and the Condominium shall be governed by an Executive

Board consisting of five (5) persons. The Executive Board shall consist of the Declarant or any other person as shall have been designated by the Declarant and Unit owners in the following manner:

(i) During the period of Declarant control, the provisions of Section 9.4 of the Declaration shall govern appointment and removal of officers and members of the Executive Board.

(ii) Thereafter, the Executive Board shall be composed of five (5) persons, all of whom shall be Unit owners.

(b) Powers and Duties. The Executive Board may act on behalf of the Association and shall have the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association and may do all such acts or things except as by law or by the Declaration or by these Bylaws may not be delegated to the Executive Board by the Unit Owners. Therefore, the Executive Board may:

(i) Adopt and amend Bylaws and Rules;

(ii) Adopt and amend budgets for revenues, expenditures and reserves and collect assessments for Common Expenses from Unit Owners;

(iii) Hire and discharge managing agents and other employees, agents and independent contractors;

(iv) Institute, defend or intervene in litigation or administrative proceedings in its own name on behalf of itself or two or more Unit Owners on matters affecting the condominium;

(v) Make contracts and incur liabilities;

(vi) Regulate the use, maintenance, repair, replacement and modification of Common Elements;

(vii) Cause additional improvements to be made as a part of the Common Elements;

(viii) Acquire, hold, encumber and convey in its own name any right, title or interest to real property or personal property;

(xi) Grant easements, leases, licenses and concessions through or over the Common Elements;

(x) Impose and receive any payments, fees or charges for the use, rental or operation of the Common Elements, other than Limited Common Elements and for services provided to Unit Owners;

(xi) Impose charges or interest or both for late payment of assessments and, after notice and an opportunity to be heard, levy reasonable fines for violations of the Declaration, Bylaws and Rules of the Association;

(xii) Impose reasonable charges including reasonable attorneys' fees, if incurred, for the preparation and recordation of amendments to the Declaration, resale certificates required by the CIOA or statements of unpaid assessments;

(xiii) Provide for the indemnification of Association officers and Executive Board and maintain directors' and officers' liability insurance;

(xiv) Assign its right to future income, including the right to receive Common Expense assessments;

(xv) Exercise any other powers conferred by the Declaration or Bylaws;

(xvi) Exercise all other powers that may be exercised in this state by legal entities of the same type as the Association; and

(xvii) Exercise any other powers necessary and proper for the governance and operation of the Association.

In furtherance of the foregoing, the Executive Board shall also have the power and duty to:

(xviii) Operate, care, upkeep and maintain the Common Elements;

(xix) Determine the Common Expenses required for the affairs of the Association, including, without limitation, the operation and maintenance of the Property and for the

establishment of reserves to provide for maintenance, improvements, replacements, working capital, bad debts, depreciation, obsolescence and similar purposes as are deemed desirable;

(xx) Collect the Common Expenses from the Unit Owners;

(xxi) Open bank accounts on behalf of the Association and designating the signatories required therefor;

(xxii) Sell, lease, mortgage (but not voting the votes appurtenant thereto) or otherwise deal with Units acquired by, and sublease Units leased by the Executive Board or its designee, on behalf of all Unit Owners;

(xxiii) Obtain necessary insurance for the Property, including the Units; and

(xxiv) Enforce obligations of the Unit Owners, allocate profits and expenses, and do anything and everything else necessary and proper for the sound management of the Association.

(xxv) The Executive Board may not act on behalf of the Association to amend the Declaration, to terminate the Condominium, or to elect members of the Executive Board, to determine the qualifications, powers and duties, or terms of office of Executive Board members, but the Executive Board may fill vacancies in its membership for the unexpired portion of any term as provided in subparagraph (e) below.

Amendments to the Declaration required by said Declaration to be recorded by the Association shall be prepared, executed, recorded and certified on behalf of the Association by any officer of the Association designated for that purpose or, in the absence of designation, by the president of the Association.

The Executive Board or its officers may delegate to other persons, or to a managing agent, all powers set forth above except for the following set forth in this subparagraph (b): i, ii, iii, iv, xi, xiv, xv, xvi, xvii, xxiv, xxv.

(c) Election and Term of Office. The first meeting of the Unit Owners shall be held on call by the Declarant not more than 60 days after Unit Owners are entitled to elect a majority of the Executive Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 3(a)

08007-0588 • (203) 242-7745 • JURIS NO. 50888  
P. O. BOX 888 • ALCOCK, CT 06201  
TEL. 860-439-8888 • FAX 860-439-8889  
WWW.AVEVA.COM

and the Declaration. Said meeting shall be considered to be the first annual meeting of the Unit Owners. At said first annual meeting, five (5) members of the Executive Board shall be elected by the Unit Owners from among the Unit Owners. Three (3) members shall be elected for two (2) year terms, and two (2) members shall be elected for one (1) year terms. Thereafter, all members shall be elected for two (2) year terms. The members of the Executive Board shall hold office until their respective successors have been elected by the Unit Owners. The Executive Board initially appointed by the Declarant shall act until the election has been completed at said first meeting. At any vote for membership on the Executive Board, and for all other voting purposes, each Unit Owner, including the Declarant to the extent that the Declarant is still a Unit Owner, shall have one vote for each position to be filled. If at any meeting held for election of membership to the Executive Board more than twice the number of candidates to be elected at such meeting are nominated, then and in such event there shall be two ballots for membership. At the end of the first ballot, the field of nominees shall be reduced so that there are no more than twice as many candidates running as there are positions to be filled, with the lowest vote getters being eliminated. A second ballot shall be held, and on the second ballot, the top vote getters on the basis of the weighted votes will be elected. If there are not more than twice the number of nominees for the number of positions to be filled, then there shall be one ballot, with the top vote getters being elected to membership on the Executive Board. After the first annual meeting of the Unit Owners, succeeding annual meetings shall be held on the 15th day of March in each year unless such date shall occur on a Saturday or Sunday, in which event, the meeting will be held on the succeeding Friday. At each annual meeting, members of the Executive Board for those terms expiring shall be elected by ballot of the Unit Owners in accordance with these Bylaws. Notwithstanding, any other provisions of these Bylaws to the contrary, however, so long as the Declarant shall hold for sale in the ordinary course of business twenty percent or more of the units in the Dockominium, the Declarant shall be entitled to designate not less than one member of the Executive Board. At such time as the Declarant no longer holds such percentage of units, the member of the Executive Board designated by the Declarant shall vacate the Executive Board and the place vacated by the Declarant's representative shall be filled by the remaining members of the Executive Board as herein provided for the unexpired portion of the term.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, at any time after Unit Owners, other than the Declarant, are entitled to elect a member

JUN 1964 • 002-0588 • 12031 242-7745 • JURIS NO. 50888  
BLOOMFIELD • P. O. BOX 988

or members of the Executive Board, the Association shall call and give not less than ten, nor more than sixty days' notice of the meeting of the Unit Owners for this purpose. Such meeting may be called and the notice given by any Unit Owner if the Association fails to do so.

(d) Removal of Members of the Executive Board. At any duly held regular or special meeting of the Unit Owners at which a quorum is present, any one or more of the member of the Executive Board may be removed with or without cause by a two-thirds vote of the Unit Owners present and voting, and a successor may then and there or thereafter be elected to fill the vacancy thus created. Any member of the Executive Board whose removal has been proposed shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the meeting. The provisions of this subparagraph shall not apply during the period of Declarant control to members appointed by the Declarant.

(e) Vacancies. Vacancies in the Executive Board caused by any reason shall be filled by a vote of a majority of the remaining members of the Executive Board at a special meeting of the Executive Board held for that purpose promptly after the occurrence of any such vacancy, even though the members present at such meeting may constitute less than a quorum. Each person so elected shall be a member of the Executive Board for the remainder of the term of the member whose term he is filling and until his successor shall be elected. The foregoing shall not apply during the period of Declarant control to members appointed by the Declarant.

(f) Compensation . No member of the Executive Board shall receive any compensation from the Association for acting as a member of said Board.

(g) Meetings of the Executive Board. The first meeting of the Executive Board following the annual meeting of the Unit Owners shall be held within ten days thereafter at such time and place as shall be fixed by the Unit Owners at their annual meeting and no notice shall be necessary. Thereafter, regular meetings of the Executive Board may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of the members of the Executive Board, but at least two meetings shall; be held each year. Notice of regular meetings of the Executive Board shall be given to each member of the Board by mail, hand delivery or telegraph, at least three business days

SEE  
OVERLAY

JURIS NO  
12031242-7745

SEE  
OVERLAY

SEE  
OVERLAY

100



prior to the day of the meeting. Special meetings of the Executive Board may be called by the President on three business days' notice to each member of the Executive Board given by mail, hand delivery or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting. Special meetings of the Executive Board shall be called by the President or the Secretary in like manner and on like notice on the written request of at least three members of the Executive Board. Any member of the Executive Board may, at any time, waive notice of any meeting of the Executive Board in writing and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of notice. Actual attendance by any member of the Executive Board at any meeting of it shall constitute a waiver of notice by him of the time and place thereof.

(h) Quorum of the Executive Board. At all meetings of the Executive Board, a majority of the members thereof shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the votes of a majority of the members of the Executive Board present and voting at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute a valid decision. If at any meeting of the Executive Board there shall be less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting to a new date. At any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business which may have been transacted at the original meeting may be transacted without further notice. **SEE OVERLAY**

(i) Election of Officers. At each annual organization meeting of the Executive Board, the Executive Board shall elect a President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer of the Association. The Secretary need not be a member of the Executive Board, but may be appointed by the Executive Board. All officers and members of the Executive Board having the responsibility for handling funds of the Association are to be bonded. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association, shall preside at all meetings of the Unit Owners and the Executive Board, and shall hold the general powers and duties which are incident to the office of a president of a stock corporation, including but not limited to the power to appoint such committees from among the Unit Owners from time to time as he may in his discretion decide are appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association. The Vice President shall take the place of the President or perform his duties whenever the President shall be absent or unable to act. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Unit **SEE OVERLAY**

Owners and the Executive Board and shall have charge of such books and records as the Executive Board may direct. He shall, in general, perform all of the duties incident to the office of a secretary of a stock corporation. The Treasurer shall have the responsibility for the Association funds and securities and shall be responsible for the keeping of full and accurate records and books of account. The Treasurer, at the expense of the Association, shall furnish such bond as may be required by the Executive Board. All agreements, contracts, leases, deeds, checks and other instruments of the Association shall be executed by any two officers of the Association or by such other person or persons as may be designated by the Executive Board. No officer shall receive compensation from the Association for acting as such an officer. Upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Executive Board, any officer may be removed either with or without cause and his successors may be elected at any regular meeting of the Executive Board called for such purpose.

(j) Liability of the Executive Board. In the performance of their duties, the officers and members of the Executive Board are required to exercise (i) if appointed by the Declarant, the care required of fiduciaries of the Unit Owners and (ii) if elected by Unit Owners, ordinary and reasonable care. The Unit Owners shall indemnify and hold harmless each member of the Executive Board against all contractual liability to others arising out of contracts made by the Executive Board on behalf of the Association, unless any such contract shall have been made in bad faith or contrary to the provisions of the Declaration or of these Bylaws. It is intended that the members of the Executive Board shall have no personal liability with respect to any contract made by them on behalf of the Association. It is also intended that the liability of any Unit Owner arising out of any contract made by the Executive Board or out of the aforesaid indemnity in favor of the members of the Executive Board shall be limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder as his interest in the Common Elements bears to the interest of all Unit Owners in the Common Elements.

(k) Resale Certificates and Statements of Unpaid Assessments. Any officer of or a manager employed by the Association, may prepare, certify and execute resale certificates and statements of unpaid assessments required by and in accordance with CIOA.

The Association may charge a reasonable fee for preparing

JURISNO 30888

002

SEE OVERLAY

002

FIELD

0

0

GENU

0000

SEE OVERLAY

resale certificates and statements of unpaid assessments. The amount of this fee and the time of payment shall be established by resolution of the Executive Board. The Association may refuse to furnish resale certificates and statements of unpaid assessments until the fee is paid. Any unpaid fees may be assessed as Common Expenses against the Unit for which the certificate or statement is furnished.

SECTION 4.

MEETING OF THE UNIT OWNERS

(a) Annual Meeting. Annual meetings of the Unit Owners shall be held as hereinabove provided.

SEE  
OVERLAY

(b) Place of Meeting. The meeting of the Unit Owners shall be held at the principal office of the Association or at such other suitable place convenient to the Unit Owners as may be designated by the Executive Board.

(c) Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Association may be called by the President, a majority of the Executive Board, or by Unit Owners having twenty percent of the votes in the Association. The notice of any special meeting shall state the time and place of such meeting and the purpose thereof. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice.

SEE  
OVERLAY

(d) Notice of Meetings. Not less than ten nor more than sixty days in advance of any meeting, the Secretary or other officer specified by the President shall cause notice to be hand-delivered or sent prepaid by United States mail to the mailing address of each Unit or to any other mailing address designated in writing by the Unit Owner. The notice of any meeting shall state the time and place of the meeting and the items on the agenda, including the general nature of any proposed amendment to the Declaration by Bylaws, any budget changes and any proposal to remove an officer or member of the Executive Board.

SEE  
OVERLAY

(e) Quorum.

(i) A quorum is present throughout any meeting of the Association if persons entitled to cast twenty percent of the votes that may be cast for election

of the Executive Board are present in person or by proxy at the beginning of the meeting.

- (ii) A quorum is deemed present throughout any meeting of the Executive Board if persons entitled to cast fifty percent of the votes on that Board are present at the beginning of the meeting.

(f) Conduct of the Meetings. The order of business at the annual meeting of the Unit Owners or at any special meeting as far as practicable shall be:

- (i) Calling of the roll and certifying the proxies.
- (ii) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice.
- (iii) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes.
- (iv) Receiving reports of officers.
- (v) Receiving reports of committees.
- (vi) Election of inspector of election.
- (vii) Election of members of Executive Board, if necessary.
- (viii) Old business.
- (ix) New business.
- (x) Adjournment.

At all meetings of the Unit Owners or of the Executive Board, Roberts' Rules of Order shall be followed.

(g) Majority of Votes. A vote of the majority of Unit Owners at a meeting at which a quorum shall be present shall be binding upon all Unit Owners for all purposes except wherein by the Declaration, these Bylaws or bylaw, a higher percentage is required.

(h) Method of Voting.

- (i) If only one of several owners of the Unit is present at a meeting of the Association, that owner is entitled to cast the vote allocated to

SEE  
OVERLAY

SEE  
OVERLAY

JUNIS NO. 50288

SEE  
OVERLAY

SEE  
OVERLAY

SEE  
OVERLAY

that Unit. If more than one of the owners are present, the vote allocated to that Unit may be cast only in accordance with the agreement of a majority in interest of the owners. There is majority agreement if any one of the owners casts the vote allocated to that Unit without protest being made promptly to the person presiding over the meeting by any of the owners of the Unit.

The vote of a corporation or business trust may be cast by any officer of such corporation or business trust in the absence of express notice of the designation of a specific person by the Executive Board or Bylaws of the owning corporation or business trust. The vote of a partnership may be cast by any general partner of the owning partnership in the absence of express notice of the designation of a specific person by the owning partnership. The moderator of the meeting may require reasonable evidence that a person voting on behalf of a corporation, partnership or business trust owner is qualified so to vote.

- (ii) The vote allocated to a Unit may be cast pursuant to a proxy duly executed by a Unit Owner. If a Unit is owned by more than one person, each owner of the Unit may vote or register protest to the casting of a vote by the other owners of the Unit through a duly executed proxy. A Unit Owner may revoke a proxy given pursuant to this subparagraph only by actual notice of revocation to the person presiding over a meeting of the Association. A proxy is void if it is not dated or purports to be revocable without notice. A proxy terminates one year after its date, unless it specifies a shorter term.

SEE  
OVERLAY

- (iii) No votes allocated to Units owned by the Association may be cast.

SEE  
OVERLAY

#### SECTION 5.

#### RECORDS

- (a) The Declarant and the Association shall maintain accounting records according to generally accepted accounting

SEE  
OVERLAY

principles. Such records shall include: (i) a record of all receipts and expenditures; (ii) an account for each Unit which shall designate the name and address of each Unit Owner, the amount of each assessment, the dates on which the assessment comes due, the amounts paid on the account, and the balance due; (iii) a record of the actual cost, irrespective of discounts and allowances, of the maintenance of the Common Elements; (iv) an accurate account of the current balance in the reserve for replacement and for emergency repairs; (v) such other records as shall enable the Association to comply with the resale certificate provisions of section 71 of CIOA, if applicable, with respect to the following:

- (A) An account for each Unit showing the amounts of monthly Common Expense assessments currently due and payable from each Unit Owner.
- (B) An account for each Unit Owner showing any other fees payable by each Unit Owner.
- (C) A record of any capital expenditures anticipated by the Association for the current and next succeeding fiscal year.
- (D) A record of the amount of any reserves for capital expenditures.
- (E) The current operating budget.
- (F) A record of any unsatisfied judgments against the Association and the existence of any pending suits in which the Association is a defendant.
- (G) A record of insurance coverage provided for the benefit of Unit Owners.

(b) Records maintained by the Declarant, by the Association or by the manager shall be available for examination and copying by any Unit Owner, his duly authorized agents or attorneys, at the expense of the Unit Owner, during normal business hours and after reasonable notice.

SEE  
OVERLAY

SECTION 6.

INSURANCE

All provisions relating to insurance are to be found in the Declaration and the same are hereby incorporated by reference to

the same extent and effect as if set forth herein verbatim.

SECTION 7.

ASSESSMENT OF COMMON EXPENSES

(a) Until the Association makes a Common Expense assessment, the Declarant shall pay all Common Expenses. After an assessment has been made by the Association, assessments shall be made at least annually by the Association. A copy of the current operating budget is annexed hereto as Schedule A-1.

(b) Except for assessments under subsections (c), (d) and (e) of this section, all Common Expenses shall be assessed against all Units in accordance with the allocations set forth in the Declaration. The Common Expenses shall include, among other things, the cost of repairs and maintenance of the Common Elements and Limited Common Elements and the cost of all insurance premiums on all policies of insurance required to be or which have been obtained by the Association pursuant to these Bylaws and the fees and disbursements of the Insurance Trustee. The Common Expenses may also include such amounts as the Association may deem proper for the operation and maintenance of the Property, including without limitation an amount for a working reserve fund for replacements, and to make up any deficit in the Common Expenses for any prior year. The Common Expenses may also include such amounts as may be required for the purchase or lease by the Association or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all Unit Owners, of any Unit whose owner has elected to sell or lease such Unit or of any Unit which is to be sold at a foreclosure or other judicial sale. The Association shall advise all Unit owners promptly, in writing, of the amount of common charges payable by each of them, respectively, as determined by the Association, as aforesaid, and shall furnish copies of each budget on which such common charges are based to all Unit Owners as to their mortgagees. Any past due Common Expense assessment or installment thereof bears interest at the rate established by the Association not exceeding eighteen percent per year.

(c) Provisions dealing with costs of insurance and costs of utilities are contained in the Declaration.

(d) Assessments to pay a judgment against the Association

95 FIELD AVENUE • P. U. BOX 588 • F. O. CT 06002-0588 • JURIS NO. 50888 • (203) 242-7745 • ATTORNEYS AT LAW

may be made only against the Units in the Dockominium at the time the judgment was rendered, in proportion to their Common Expense liabilities.

(e) If any Common Expense is caused by the misconduct of any Unit Owner, the Association may assess that Expense exclusively against his unit.

(f) If Common Expense liabilities are reallocated, Common Expense assessments and any installment thereof not yet due shall be recalculated in accordance with the reallocated Common Expense liabilities.

(g) All Unit Owners shall be obligated to pay the common charges and Common Expenses assessed by the Association at such time or times as the Association shall determine. As of the effective date of these Bylaws, such common charges shall be payable monthly on the first day of each month.

(h) Within thirty days after adoption of any proposed budget for the Dockominium, the Executive Board shall provide a summary of the budget to all the Unit Owners, and shall set a date for a meeting of the Unit Owners to consider ratification of the budget not less than fourteen nor more than thirty days after mailing of the summary. Unless at that meeting a majority of all Unit Owners reject the budget, the budget is ratified, whether or not a quorum is present. In the event the proposed budget is rejected, the periodic budget last ratified by the Unit Owners shall be continued until such time as the Unit Owners ratify a subsequent budget proposed by the Executive Board.

SECTION 8.

SEE  
OVERLAY

COLLECTION OF COMMON EXPENSES

(a) The Association has a statutory lien on a Unit for any assessment levied against that Unit or fines imposed against its Unit Owner from the time the assessment or fine becomes due. Fees, charges, late charges, fines for violations of the Declaration, Bylaws and Rules and the costs incurred by the Association in enforcing the Rules and interest charged pursuant to the Declaration are enforceable as assessments under this section. If an assessment is payable in installments, the full amount of the assessment is a lien from the time the first installment thereof becomes due.

SEE  
OVERLAY

JURIS NO. 50888  
2031242-7745

SEE  
OVERLAY

CT 06002-0288

SEE  
OVERLAY

93 BE



Submetered utility charges for each Unit will be billed to each Unit Owner, are hereby made "assessment" within the meaning of this section, and shall be enforceable as assessments hereunder. Likewise, any other cost required to be paid by Unit Owners in these Bylaws, the Declaration or Rules is hereby made an "assessment" and is enforceable as such.

(b) A lien under this section is prior to all other liens and encumbrances on a Unit except (i) liens and encumbrances recorded before the recordation of the Declaration; (ii) a first or second security interest on the Unit recorded before the date on which the assessment sought to be enforced became delinquent, and (iii) liens for real property taxes and other governmental assessments or charges against the Unit. The lien is also prior to all security interests described in subdivision (ii) of this subsection to the extent of the Common Expense assessments based on the periodic budget adopted by the Association pursuant to the Declaration or these Bylaws which would have become due in the absence of acceleration during the six months immediately preceding institution of an action to enforce the lien. This subsection does not affect the priority of mechanics' or materialmen's liens, or the priority of liens for other assessments made by the Association.

(c) Recording of the Declaration constitutes record notice and perfection of the lien. No further recordation of any claim of lien for assessment under this section is required.

(d) A lien for unpaid assessments is extinguished unless proceedings to enforce the lien are instituted within two years after the full amount of the assessments become due; provided, that if an owner of a Unit subject to a lien under this section files a petition for relief under the United States Bankruptcy Code, the period of time for instituting proceedings to enforce the Association's lien shall be tolled until thirty days after the automatic stay of proceedings under Section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code is lifted.

(e) This section does not prohibit actions to recover sums for which subsection (a) of this section creates a lien (which actions shall not be deemed to constitute a waiver of such lien or the right to foreclose it), or prohibit the Association from taking a deed in lieu of foreclosure.

JAVIS  
P.O. BOX 588 • BLOOMINGDALE, ILL. 61702-0588 • (203) 242-7745 • JURIS NO. 50888



mortgagee of a Unit shall be permitted to examine the books of account of the Association at reasonable times on business days.

(e) Collection and Disbursement of Mortgage Charges. The Association may require that payment of all mortgage charges by Unit Owners be made to the managing agent or manager to be held in trust to be disbursed promptly by such managing agent or manager only to the respective mortgagee. This may only be done with the consent of the mortgagee, however.

(f) Limitation of Mortgage. No Unit Owner shall be permitted to convey, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate, sell or lease his Unit unless and until he shall have paid in full to the Association all unpaid Common Expenses theretofore assessed by the Association against his Unit and until he shall have satisfied all unpaid liens against such Unit except permitted mortgages.

(g) Financing Purchase of Units by Association. Acquisition of Units by the Association on behalf of all Unit Owners may be made from the working capital in the hands of the Association, or if such funds are insufficient, the Association may levy an assessment against each Unit Owner in proportion to his ownership in the Common Elements as a Common Expense, which assessment shall be enforceable in the same manner as Common Expenses, or the Association may in its discretion borrow money to finance the acquisition of such Units, provided however that no financing may be secured by an encumbrance or hypothecation of any property other than the Unit itself together with the appurtenant interests thereto to be acquired by the Association. Notwithstanding any rights of the Association under this paragraph or under any other provision of these Bylaws, it is agreed that the Association cannot at any one time hold title to more than ten percent of the total number of Units in the Condominium.

SECTION 10.

NOTICE OF LIEN OR SUIT

Each Unit Owner shall give notice to the Association of any lien upon his Unit other than for permitted mortgages, taxes and special assessments within five days after the attaching of the lien. Failure to comply with this paragraph will not affect the

NEW YORK • (203) 242-7745 • JURIS NO. 50888  
D. CT 06002-0588 • 811  
JE BOX 1000

validity of any judicial sale. Notice shall also be given to the Association of every suit or other proceedings which may affect the title to a Unit within five days after the Unit Owner receives knowledge of the same.

SECTION 11.

MISCELLANEOUS

(a) Notices. All notices hereunder shall be sent by registered or certified mail to the Executive Board in care of the President of the Association and/or to the managing agent if there be a managing agent. All notices to any Unit Owner shall be mailed or delivered to the Unit Owner at such other address as may have been designated by him from time to time in writing to the Executive Board. All notices to mortgagees of Units shall be sent by registered mail or certified mail to their respective addresses as designated by them from time to time in writing to the Executive Board. All notices shall be deemed to have been given when mailed except notices of change of address which shall be deemed to have been given when received.

(b) Invalidity. The invalidity of any part of these Bylaws shall not impair or affect in any manner the enforceability or effect of the balance of these Bylaws.

(c) Captions. The captions inserted herein are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference and do not define, limit or describe the scope of these Bylaws or the intent of any provision thereof.

(d) Waiver. No restriction, condition, obligation or covenant contained in these Bylaws shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of the failure to enforce the same irrespective of the number of violations or breaches thereof which may occur.

SECTION 12.

MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

Except as hereinbefore provided otherwise, these Bylaws may be modified or amended by the vote of sixty-seven percent of the

SEE  
OVERLAY

JURIS 50888  
ATTORNEYS AT LAW  
F. P. G. • (203) 242-7745 • CT 06002-0588  
ENN. ID. NO. BOX 588 • BLOC  
33 BLOOMFIELD AVENUE  
MIDDLETOWN, CT 06457

Unit Owners. Provided that said vote shall be taken at a meeting of the Unit Owners duly held for such purpose and further following written notice to the mortgagees of such Units appearing on the records of the Association. The vote at such a meeting may be in person or by proxy. Notwithstasnding any other provision herein, however, no amendment may become effective except with the written approval of all mortgagees holding mortgages constituting first liens upon fifty-one percent or more Units, which approval shall not unreasonably be withheld.

Certified to be the Bylaws adopted by consent of the incorporators of Clinton Yacht Haven Dockominium Association, Inc., dated

, 1987.

---

Allan York  
Incorporator

BLOC  
AVE  
P.C  
588  
JOMF  
P.O.  
0800  
1200Jr242-7745 • JURIS NO. 50888

